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OUR VISION

VISION
Dentalkart’s vision is

to create a global platform 
where

Anything Dental
is made accessible as well as 

a�ordable.



INDEX
CORPORATE INFORMATION������������������������������������������������������� 2

ABOUT DENTALKART ������������������������������������������������������������������ 3

CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE��������������������������������������������������������������� 4

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS������������������������������������������������������ 5

MANAGEMENT������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 7

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS��������������������������������������������� 9

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT INITIATIVES 
EMPOWERING OUR WORKFORCE�������������������������������������������14

WAREHOUSE��������������������������������������������������������������������������������16

MANAGEMENT�����������������������������������������������������������������������������16

PRESENCE ON ALL MARKETING CHANNELS�����������������������17

DENTALKART'S EXHIBITIONS �������������������������������������������������20

NOTICE OF 8TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ��������������������22

DIRECTORS’ REPORT�����������������������������������������������������������������36

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND 
FUTURE OUTLOOK ��������������������������������������������������������������������37

DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, 
COMMITTEES AND POLICIES����������������������������������������������������41

CODE OF CONDUCT �������������������������������������������������������������������60

ANNEXURE-I����������������������������������������������������������������������������������61

ANNEXURE-II��������������������������������������������������������������������������������63

ANNEXURE III�������������������������������������������������������������������������������68

ANNEXURE IV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������71

AUDITOR'S REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED 
FINANICIAL STATEMENTS ��������������������������������������������������������76

CONSOLIDATED FINANICIAL STATEMENTS �������������������������85

AUDITOR'S REPORT ON STANDALONE 
FINANICIAL STATEMENTS ������������������������������������������������������110

STANDALONE FINANICIAL STATEMENTS ���������������������������122

₹173.32 Cr.
Total Revenue

₹20.48 Cr.
EBITDA 

₹15.08 Cr.
Profit after tax

7*
Warehouse

*As on 31st March

34000* Sq. ft
Warehouse space
*As on 31st March

Key Highlights
FY 2023-24



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. Vikas Agarwal				    Chairman & Managing Director
Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal				   CFO & Whole-time Director
Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi				    Independent Director
Dr. Akanksha Aggarwal			   Non-Executive Director
Mr. Varun Chugh				    Independent Director
Mr. Ravi Jagetiya				    Independent Director

COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Akhilesh (Appointed w.e.f. 22nd August, 2024)

REGISTERED OFFICE AND CONTACT DETAILS

Khasra No. 714, Village P.O. Chattarpur, New Delhi-110074
Email ID:- cs@dentalkart.com | Website:- www.dentalkart.com
Contact No.: +91 8527360456

STATUTORY AUDITORS

KRA & Co., Chartered Accountants
H-1/208, Garg Tower, Netaji Subhash Place, Pitampura, Delhi-110034

FRN:- 020266N

INTERNAL AUDITORS

BGMG & Associates, Chartered Accountants 
Unit No 570, Pocket C8, Sector 8 Rohini

FRN:- 025265N

BANKERS

Axis Bank Limited
CC-24, Ground Floor, Nehru Enclave, New Delhi: 110019 India

ICICI Bank Limited
Shop No. 619/10, Opp. Tivoli Garden, Chattarpur, New Delhi: 110074 India

LISTED ON STOCK EXCHANGE

NSE SME Platform

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

Mas Services Limited
T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New Delhi-110020, Delhi, India.
Telephone: +91-11-2638 7281/82/83 | Facsimile: +91-11-26387384
Email: info@masserv.com | Website: www.masserv.com

CORPORATE INFORMATION



Dentalkart stands as a beacon of reliability, quality, and trust in the dental 
industry. With an extensive selection of over 18,000+ products, we are dedicated 
to meeting the diverse needs of dental professionals, offering everything they 
need under one roof. Our platform’s user-friendly design, secure payment 
options, and rapid delivery service make Dentalkart the go-to destination for 
dentists worldwide. We pride ourselves on providing a seamless shopping 
experience, backed by efficient delivery even to the most remote areas of 
India. Dentalkart is the preferred choice for thousands of dentists, ensuring 
they always have access to the essential supplies required to provide top-
notch oral healthcare to their patients.

ABOUT 
DENTALKART



Dear Shareholders,

I am delighted to welcome you all to the Second Annual 
General Meeting of VASA Denticity Limited (“DentalKart”) 
following our successful listing on the National Stock 
Exchange SME Portal. It is both an honor and a privilege 
to serve as the Chairman of this remarkable organization, 
and I am excited to share our journey, achievements, and 
future goals with you.

Over the past year, DentalKart has continued to 
grow and transform, staying true to the essence of 
who we are. Our journey goes beyond business—
it’s driven by our passion, vision, and unwavering 
commitment to revolutionizing the dental industry. 
 
We are not just building the world’s most comprehensive 
dental product catalogue; we are cultivating a vibrant 
community of dental professionals, fostering a global 
ecosystem that connects, supports, and inspires. Our 
ambitions are vast, and our dedication to excellence is 
guided by insights from renowned business principles. 
Embracing a customer-obsessed approach, we prioritize 
innovation and continuous improvement to better serve 
the dental community. We are committed to building 
long-term trust, focusing on integrity, patience, and 
creating true value as the foundation of our relationships. 
 
At DentalKart, we understand that discipline, efficiency, 
and a strong, motivated team are the cornerstones of 
sustained success. We are committed to nurturing an 
organization with visionary management and a robust 
framework that empowers our people to reach their 
full potential. Our journey is defined by our passion for 
the dental industry, respect for dental professionals, 
and a relentless focus on customer satisfaction. 

 
This year, we have diversified our portfolio and expanded 
into new categories and platforms. But beyond growth, 
we are building a legacy—nurturing a culture that fosters 
leadership, recognizes talent, and prepares it for the 
future. We remain dedicated to creating an environment 
that champions our people and promotes lasting success. 
 
I extend my heartfelt gratitude to our dedicated team 
members, channel partners, suppliers, and you—
our valued shareholders. Your trust, support, and 
commitment have been instrumental in our journey. 
 
DentalKart is more than a business; it’s a dream 
we are bringing to life. Together, we are crafting 
something extraordinary—a future where we stand 
as leaders in community, innovation, and excellence. 
The road ahead is filled with opportunities, and 
we are excited to continue this journey with you. 
 
Thank you for your continued trust and support. Here’s 
to a future of growth, innovation, and shared success.

Dr. Vikas Agarwal

Chairman
VASA Denticity Limited

Chairman's Message



OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors drives growth by aligning strategy with market 

insights and innovation while upholding core values.

Dr. VIKAS AGARWAL

FOUNDER, CHAIRPERSON & MANAGING DIRECTOR

Founder & CEO: Dr. Vikas Agarwal is a dental surgeon by profession and a 
serial entrepreneur by choice with a demonstrated history of working in the 
health wellness and fitness industry. An Alumnus of Maulana Azad Institute 
of Dental Sciences and an avid product expert who likes to keep himself 
updated with all the latest dental product and technologies at international 
level. He is the technical product expert and brain behind Dentalkart.com. 
His entrepreneurship journey began at college itself. He has successfully boot 
strapped Dentalkart.com and made it grow at the highest pace possible.

MR. SANDEEP AGGARWAL

CO- FOUNDER, WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Co-founder & COO : Mr Sandeep Aggarwal is (Tech Fanatic) by passion but 
(Analytical Entrepreneur) by mind. Books has always been best partner for him 
as he defines himself an active learner and have strong believe over continuous 
learnings. His outlook has always been focused on modernized and optimized 
solutions. He demonstrates himself multi-passionate personality having 
expertise in technical, digital & operational domain and is active brain behind 
Dentalkart.com.

MR. PARMESHWAR RAVI
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi with 30 years of experience in HR, including over 15 years as 
the Head of Function across diverse industries, he is currently consulting with a 
focus on addressing People Problems and Safety Issues. Throughout his career, 
he has consistently strived to help employees, particularly young professionals, 
connect with the organization and thrive in the workplace. Additionally, he has 
played a key role in building capacity and capability within the organizations he 
has served, contributing to their long-term success and growth.

Annual Report 2023-24
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DR. AKANKSHA AGGARWAL
NON- EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Serving as a Non-Executive Women Director in VASA Denticity 
Limited, Dr. Aggarwal brings to the table an extensive reservoir of 
knowledge accumulated over a remarkable decade-long journey in the 
dental world.

A passionate clinician at heart, Dr. Aggarwal's odyssey in dentistry began over 
10 years ago. Her association with VASA Denticity Limited has not been merely 
titular. Even as a Non-Executive Director, Dr. Aggarwal's insights, stemming from 
her vast clinical experience, have been invaluable.

MR. RAVI JAGETIYA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Ravi K Jagetiya is a practicing Chartered Accountant having experience of 15 
years in Direct, Indirect Tax Compliance, SME public Issue, Financial Modelling, 
and M&A related valuation. His core expertise is to Mentor SME for scale up 
and assisting them to list the Company in capital market to unlock value of the 
Company. He has vast experience of available Banking facilities in India and a great 
resource to explore the new financial solution depending upon the need of the 
Company.

MR. VARUN CHUGH
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Mr. Varun Chugh has been associated with the Institute of Chartered 
Accounts of India since 2018 as a qualified Chartered Accountant. A 
Professional experienced in developing financial models, analyzing financial 
statements, financial due diligence, micro and macro trends, preparing 
company profiles, and reports, and facilitating effective decision-making. 

He was associated with one of the Big 4’s (EY) as a Senior Executive in Assurance. 
Also, he is an Independent Director in one of the subsidiaries of Renew Power.
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MR. MANISH KUMAR

TECH

DR. SHUBHAM SHARMA

CONTENT

MR. NAKUL VARSHNEY

TECH

MR. NIKHIL DHAWAN

HUMAN RESOURCE

MR. SAURABH AGRAWAL

IMPORT

MR. RAJAT ANAND

OPERATIONS

MS. SHALINI GIRDHAR

TECH

DR. SHIVALI TIWARY

CONTENT

MR. GAURAV MAURYA

CREATIVE

MR. AKASH BAIRWA

SUPPLY CHAIN

Management
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MR. ROHAN SINGH

DIGITAL MARKETING

MR. NIKHIL SAXENA

SALES

MS. MALLIKA ARORA

CUSTOMER SUPPORT

MS. NEELAM SANJIV

HUMAN RESOURCE

MR. AKHILESH ATTRAY

COMPANY SECRETARY

SALES

MR. ANSHUL GUPTA
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Key Performance 
Indicators
With a strategy focused on maintaining cost efficiencies 
while offering the best customer value, Dentalkart has 
consistently demonstrated stable performance across 
both financial and operational parameters over the 
years.

Year on year(YoY)
Unique Customers

YOY Order Growth

32402
40164

61465

73542

90389

91316
113640

202335

316748

430574
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Total Revenue 
(Cr.)

YOY 
Warehousing Space

Average Revenue 
Per Order (₹)

(Approximated to Nearest Thousand) 
*As on 31st March

3200

8000

13000
16000

34000*

30.4
40.1

76.9

123.3

173.32

3331.8

3526.12

3801.64
3892.68

4030
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YOY 
Total Brands Sold

Exclusive Brand

*Not Including Unlaunched Brands

91
128

241

330

450+

3

14

28
31

50+*
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Current Ratio 
(In Times)

Debt Equity Ratio 
(In Times) 

Total SKU8K+

10K+

13K+

15K+

18K+

1.64

2.7

0.57

0.06 0.001

1.02 1.05
1.49

1.96

4.95
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EBITDA Margin 

Interest Coverage 
Ratio(In Times) 

Basic Earning Per 
Share (₹)

1%

6.47

1.57%

15.93

7.46%

14.03

8.83%

27.49

11.92%

280.97

0.09 0.26

3.89

5.92

9.72
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Employee Engagement 
Initiatives Empowering Our Workforce

DOCTOR’S DAY

INDEPENDENCE DAY OF INDIA

IDEAS DAY

Doctor’s Day was celebrated with heartfelt 
appreciation, acknowledging the dedication and 
selflessness of medical professionals who tirelessly 
contribute to society's health and well-being. To 
honor the doctors within the company, special gifts 
were distributed as a token of gratitude for their 
invaluable contributions.

Employees enthusiastically participated in Ideas Day, 
where they were encouraged to share innovative 
ideas and creative solutions. The best ideas were 
recognized and awarded, fostering a culture of 
appreciation and highlighting the importance of 
employee contributions to the company’s growth.

Independence Day was celebrated with vibrant 
enthusiasm, featuring a variety of engaging activities 
such as a patriotic quiz and cultural performances 
by employees. The event was complemented with 
festive snacks, fostering team spirit and national 
pride within the workplace.
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ANNUAL DAY & IPO LISTING CELEBRATION

WOMEN’S DAY

CHRISTMAS DAY & NEW YEAR CELEBRATION

The Annual Day and IPO listing celebration were 
marked by a grand event where employees were 
recognized for their achievements. Enthusiastic 
performances and large-scale festivities showcased 
the company's growth and fostered a sense of pride 
and excitement among the team.

Christmas and New Year celebrations were marked by 
festive cheer, with employees exchanging thoughtful 
gifts as Secret Santas. The event fostered joy and 
gratitude, highlighting a shared sense of optimism 
and camaraderie for the year ahead.

Women’s Day was celebrated with enthusiasm, 
focusing on empowerment and recognizing the 
invaluable contributions of our female employees. 
Their ideas and achievements were appreciated, with 
gifts and snacks distributed as tokens of gratitude.

Annual Report 2023-24
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Warehouse
Management
Dentalkart has significantly expanded its warehousing space to meet the growing demands of its business. 
This increase reflects a positive trend, indicating higher demand for products, broader product offerings, and 
enhanced supply chain optimization.

Larger warehousing capacity supports effective inventory management, allowing for better stocking levels and 
reducing the risk of stockouts. As Dentalkart aims to serve a wider geographic area, the expanded warehousing 
space is crucial for meeting logistical needs and supporting growth.

Additionally, investment in automated warehousing systems has further increased storage capacity and 
operational efficiency. 

Our warehouses are strategically located in Gurgaon, Bangalore, Delhi, Mumbai, Kolkata, Nagpur, and Guwahati 
to ensure seamless distribution across the country.
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Digital Media
Channel

30

50100

Paid
Media

Earned
Media

Owned
Media

PRESENCE ON ALL
MARKETING CHANNELS
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47K
Followers

52.7K
Subscribers

28K
Followers

14.1K
Followers

DENTALKART SOCIAL MEDIA

DENTALKART
REVIEWS &
RATING

Google Review
Rating 4.8/5

Reviews 6144

Google Play Store
Rating 3.9/5

Reviews 13.3K

App Store
Rating 4.0/5

Reviews 1.5K

MONTHY ACTIVE USER
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PLATFORM WISE ORDER

APP INSTALL DATA
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DENTALKART’S EXHIBITION

Exhibitions have become a cornerstone of Dentalkart’s marketing strategy, offering us a dynamic platform to 
showcase our products, connect with industry professionals, and elevate our brand presence. Our participation 
in key dental exhibitions has allowed us to highlight our innovations and build meaningful relationships across 
the industry. Dentalkart's presence was impactful at: IDA Tamilnadu Dental Show, ADITI Bangalore Expodent, 
ADITI Expodent Mumbai, the 49th Karnataka State Dental Conference, 41st MP State Dental Conference 2024, 
Indore, 54th Assam Dental Conference, and many other significant events.

DENTALKART'S 
EXHIBITIONS

BALDUS SEDATION CONFERENCE
Showcased advancements in sedation techniques and gathered insights from specialists.

47TH ANNUAL CONFERENCE AOMSI
Highlighted innovations in oral and maxillofacial 

surgery.

EXPODENT INTERNATIONAL INDIA 2023, NEW DELHI
Our team actively engaged with industry professionals, 

introduced new products, and gathered valuable 
market insights for future innovations.
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STRATEGIC APPROACH
Dentalkart's exhibition strategy is designed to maximize 
engagement and gather actionable feedback. Our 
thoughtfully crafted booths and creative displays reflect 
our brand identity and attract market attention. We use 
instant surveys and prize draws to encourage visitor 
participation and collect valuable feedback. Analyzing 
this data helps us understand market trends, address 
common concerns, and continually improve our products 
and services.

By leveraging exhibitions, Dentalkart not only enhances 
its market presence but also fosters valuable connections 
and drives innovation within the dental industry.

ADITI BANGALORE EXPODENT
Presented our latest offerings and gathered valuable market insights.

HYDERABAD DENTAL SHOW
Strengthened regional connections and showcased 

our latest products.

24TH IACDE NATIONAL PG CONVENTION
Highlighted our educational products and services 

for postgraduate students.

FAMDENT MUMBAI 2024
Showcased innovative dental solutions and 

connected with industry leaders.

Annual Report 2023-24
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NOTICE OF 
8th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

VASA DENTICITY LIMITED
CIN: U74999DL2016PLC305052

Registered Office: Khasra No. 714, Village P.O. Chattarpur, South Delhi- 110074, Delhi, India 
 Telephone No.: +91-7289999456; E-mail: cs@dentalkart.com; Website: www.dentalkart.com

NOTICE is hereby given that the 8th Annual General Meeting of the Members of VASA DENTICITY LIMITED, 
formerly known as VASA Denticity Private Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, September 30, 
2024 at 11:00 A.M. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM). The venue of the 
meeting shall be deemed to be the registered office of the Company to transact the following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.	To receive, consider and adopt the Audited 
Financial statements of the company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2024, including the 
Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow 
Statement for the year ended on that date together 
with the reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements 
of the Company for the financial year ended March 
31, 2024 and the reports of the Board of Directors 
and Statutory Auditors thereon, as circulated to 
the Members, be and are hereby considered and 
adopted.” 

2.	To appoint a director in place of Dr. Vikas Agarwal 
(DIN 07487686), who retires by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for reappointment. Brief 
details of Directors proposed to be appointed or 
re-appointed as required under Regulation 36 
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is duly provided 
in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting 
(Annexure- A).

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modification(s), the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT Dr. Vikas Agarwal (DIN 07487686), 
who retires by rotation at the 8th Annual General 
Meeting in accordance with Section 152 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Articles of 
Association of the Company and being eligible 
has offered himself for re- appointment, be and is 
hereby re-appointed as a Managing Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.	Change in Designation of Mr. Parmeshswar Ravi 
(DIN:- 05216282) from Additional Director (Non-
Executive & Independent) to Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or 
without modifications, the following resolution as 
Ordinary Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 
149,150, 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with 
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 along with Schedule IV of the 
Act (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and 
any other applicable Regulations, if any, Mr. Ravi 
Kant Jagetiya (holding DIN: 08734797), who was 
appointed as an Additional Director (Non-Executive 
& Independent) of the Company by the Board of 
Directors w.e.f. 11th day of March, 2024 and who 
has submitted a declaration of independence as 
provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and who holds 
office till the date of the Annual General Meeting in 
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terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
and in respect of whom the Company has received 
a notice in writing from the candidate himself in 
terms of Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 
signifying his intention to propose himself for the 
office of Independent Director, be and is hereby 
appointed as Independent Director of the Company, 
for a term upto 5 (Five) consecutive years w.e.f. 11th 
day of March, 2024 and whose office shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation." "RESOLVED FURTHER 
THAT any one of the Directors of the company be 
and are hereby jointly or severally authorised to 
sign and submit e-forms and all relevant e-forms, 
documents, in respect of aforesaid appointment 
with the Registrar of Companies and to do all such 
acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or 
expedient in their entire discretion, for the purpose 
of giving effect to this resolution and for matters 
connected therewith or incidental thereto.’’

For and on Behalf of the Company 
VASA Denticity Limited

Sd/- 
Akhilesh 

Company Secretary 
Membership No.: A70791 

Date: September 07, 2024 
Place: Delhi

NOTES:

1.	 In compliance with the provisions of Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
(“MCA”) General Circular No. 10/2022 dated 28th 
December, 2022, read with General Circular Nos. 
02/2022 dated 05th May, 2022, 21/2021 dated 14th 
December, 2021, 19/2021 dated 08th December, 
2021, 02/2021 dated 13th January, 2021 and 
20/2020 dated 05th May, 2020 (Collectively 
referred to as “the MCA Circulars”) and Securities 
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) Circulars dated 
05th January, 2023 read with circulars dated 13th 
May, 2022, 15th January, 2021 and 12th May, 2020 
(Collectively referred to as “the SEBI Circulars”) 
the 7th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
is being conducted through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) (hereinafter referred to as “AGM” or “e-AGM”). 
The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be 
conducted at the Registered Office of the Company 

which shall be the deemed Venue of the “AGM” or 
“e-AGM”. 

2.	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting 
out information concerning the businesses under 
Item Nos.3, 4 and 5 of the Notice, is annexed hereto. 

3.	 A statement giving relevant details of the directors 
seeking appointment/ reappointment under Item 
No. 2 of the accompanying notice, as required 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed 
herewith as Annexure-A. 

4.	 Pursuant to MCA Circulars, the AGM is being held 
through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of the 
Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, 
the facility for appointment of proxies by the 
Members is not available for the AGM and hence 
the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip and route map of 
the AGM are not annexed to this Notice. However, 
in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the 
members such as the President of India or the 
Governor of a State or body corporate can attend 
the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes 
through e-voting. 

5.	 The Board of Directors has appointed Harish 
Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretary (Membership No 9504 and Certificate of 
Practice no 8625) as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 
the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair 
and transparent manner. 

6.	 Corporate/Institutional members (i.e., other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy of its Board or governing body 
resolution/authorization etc., authorizing its 
representative to attend AGM through VC/OAVM 
on its behalf and to vote through remote e- voting. 
The said Resolution/Authorization be sent to the 
Scrutinizer by email through its registered email 
address to harish.cs1983@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

7.	 Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM 
shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

8.	 Members can login and join the AGM 30 minutes 
prior to the scheduled time to start the AGM and 
the window for joining shall be kept open till the 
expiry of 15 minutes after the scheduled time to 
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start the AGM. The facility of participation at the 
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 
1000 members, on first-come-first-served basis. 
However, the participation of large members 
(members holding 2% or more shareholding), 
promoters, institutional investors, directors, key 
managerial personnel, the Chairpersons of the 
Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
and Auditors can attend the AGM without restriction 
of first-come-first served basis. Instructions and 
other information for members for attending the 
AGM through VC/OAVM are given in this Notice. 

9.	 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, 
only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 
names will be entitled to vote. 

10.	Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the aforesaid 
MCA and SEBI Circulars, the Company is providing 
facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect 
of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 
this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through 
electronic means, as the authorized agency. The 
facility of casting votes by a member using remote 
e-voting system as well as venue voting on the 
date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

11.	For ease of conduct, members who would like to 
ask questions/express their views on the items of 
the business to be transacted at the meeting can 
send in their questions/ comments in advance 
mentioning their name, demat account number/ 
folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@
dentalkart.com. The same will be replied by the 
Company suitably. Those Members who have 
registered themselves as a speaker will only be 
allowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the AGM. The Company reserves the right 
to restrict the number of speakers depending on 
the availability of time for the AGM. 

12.	The Registers of Members and Share Transfer Books 
of the Company will remain closed from Monday, 
September 23, 2024 to Monday, September 30, 
2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 

annual closure of books. 

13.	In accordance with SEBI LODR (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) (4th amendment) 
Regulations, 2018 notified on June 07, 2018 
and further notification dated 30/11/2018 any 
request for physical transfer of shares shall not 
be processed w.e.f. April 01,2019. Further, in 
compliance with SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/ 
MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th 
January 2022, the following requests received by 
the Company in physical form will be processed 
and the shares will be issued in dematerialization 
form only: -

•	 Issue of duplicate share certificate
•	 Claim from unclaimed suspense account
•	 Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate
•	 Endorsement
•	 Sub-division / splitting of securities certificate
•	 Consolidation of securities certificates/folios
•	 Transmission
•	 Transposition

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall 
submit a duly filled up Form ISR-4 which is hosted on 
the website of the company as well as on the website 
of MAS Services Ltd, Registrar and share transfer agent 
(RTA) The aforementioned form shall be furnished in 
hard copy form.

Members holding shares in physical form are 
requested to dematerialize their holdings at the 
earliest.

14.	Pursuant to Securities & Exchange Board of India 
vide its circulars SEBI/HO/MIRSDMIRSD_RTAMB/ 
P/CIR/2021 /655 dated 3rd November, 2021, SEBI/
HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/ P/CIR/2021/687 dated 
14th December, 2021 and SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_
POD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 16th March, 2023 it 
is mandatory for holders of physical securities 
to furnish valid PAN (where the PAN is liked with 
Aadhaar), full KYC details (address proof, email 
address, mobile number, bank account details) 
and nomination (for all the eligible folios).

Freezing of Folios without valid PAN, KYC details, 
Nomination 

A.	 In case, any of the aforesaid documents/details 
are not available in a Folio, on or after 01st 
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October, 2023, the same shall be frozen by RTA.

B.	 Similarly, in case the PAN(s) in a folio is/are not 
valid as on the cut-off date specified by The 
Central Board of Direct Taxes (CBDT) then also the 
folio shall be Frozen as above.

C.	 A member/claimant will be eligible to lodge 
grievance or avail service request from the RTA 
or eligible for any payment including dividend 
only after furnishing the complete documents or 
details as aforesaid.

In case the folio continues to remain frozen as on 31st 
December,2025, the RTA / Company shall refer such 
frozen folios to the Administering Authority under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 and or 
Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.

We would further like to draw your attention to 
SEBI Notification dated 24th January, 2022 and 
SEBI Circular SEBI/ HO/MIRSD/ MIRSD_RTAMB/P/
CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022. Accordingly, 
while processing service requests in relation to; 1) 
Issue of duplicate securities certificate; 2) Claim 
from Unclaimed Suspense Account; 3) Renewal/
Exchange of securities certificate; 4) Endorsement; 
5) Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate; 
6) Consolidation of securities certificates/folios; 7) 
Transmission and 8) Transposition, the Company 
shall issue securities only in dematerialised form. For 
processing any of the aforesaid service requests the 
securities holder/claimant shall submit duly filled up 
Form ISR-4.

We hereby request to holders of physical securities 
to furnish the documents/details, as per the table 
below for respective service request, to the Registrars 
& Transfer Agents i.e., M/s. MAS Services Limited.

A member needs to submit Form ISR-1 for updating 
PAN and other KYC details to the RTA of the Company. 
Member may submit Form SH-13 to file Nomination. 
However, in case a Member do not wish to file 
nomination ‘declaration to Opt-out’ in Form ISR-3 
shall be submitted.

Sr. 
No. Particulars Please furnish 

details in

1 PAN

Form No.: ISR-1

2 Address with PIN Code

3 Email address

4 Mobile Number

5

Bank account details 
(Bank name and Branch, 
Bank account number, IFS 
Code)

6 Demat Account Number

7 Specimen Signature Form No.: ISR-2

8 Nomination details Form No.: SH-13

9 Declaration to opt out 
nomination Form No.: ISR-3

10 Cancellation or Variation 
of Nomination Form No.: SH-14

11

Request for issue 
of Securities in 
dematerialized form in 
case of below:

Form No.: ISR-4

i Issue of duplicate 
securities certificate

ii Claim from Unclaimed 
Suspense Account

iii Renewal / Exchange of 
securities certificate

iv Endorsement

v Sub-division / Splitting of 
securities certificate

vi
Consolidation of 
securities certificates/
folios

vii Transmission

viii Transposition
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15.	In case of major mismatch in the signature of the 
members(s) as available in the folio with the RTA 
and the present signature or if the signature is 
not available with the RTA, then the member(s) 
shall be required to furnish Banker’s attestation 
of the signature as per Form ISR- 2 along-with 
the documents specified therein. Hence, it is 
advisable that the members send the Form ISR-2 
alongwith the Form ISR-1 for updating of the KYC 
Details or Nomination. All the aforesaid forms can 
be downloaded from the website of the Company 
and from the website of the RTA at https://www.
masserv.com/.

16.	In compliance with the aforesaid MCA and SEBI 
Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with 
the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only 
through electronic mode to those Members 
whose email addresses are registered with the 
Company/ Depositories. Members may note 
that the Notice calling AGM along with the 
explanatory statement and Annual Report 2023-
24 are available on the website of the Company 
www.dentalkart.com and on the website of 
National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com (the Authorised agency 
for providing voting through electronic means and 
AGM through VC/OAVM). Company’s web-link on 
the above will also be provided in advertisement 
being published in Financial Express (English 
edition) and Jansatta (Hindi edition).

17.	As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 
as amended, securities of listed companies 
can be transferred only in dematerialized form 
with effect from 1st April, 2019, except in case of 
request received for transmission or transposition 
of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all 
risks associated with physical shares and for 
ease of portfolio management, members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to consider 
converting their holdings to dematerialized form. 
Members can contact the Company Secretary of 
the Company or Mas Services Limited, Company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) (Tel. 
No. 011- 26387281/82/83) for assistance in this 
regard.

18.	Members who have not yet registered their e-mail 
addresses are requested to register the same with 
their Depository Participants (“DP”) in case the 
shares are held by them in electronic form and 

with the Company/RTA in case the shares are held 
by them in physical form.

19.	 Members are requested to intimate changes, if 
any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 
e- mail address, telephone / mobile numbers, 
Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, etc., to their DPs if 
the shares are held by them in electronic form and 
to the Company/RTA if the shares are held by them 
in physical form.

20.	For receiving all future correspondence (including 
Annual Report) from the Company electronically 
shareholders are advised to register their email 
id with the Company/ Depository. In view of the 
above please follow below instructions to register 
your email ID for obtaining Annual Report for FY 
2023-2024 and login details for e-voting.

For Physical Shareholders

Send a signed request letter to Registrar and Transfer 
Agents of the Company, MAS Services Limited at 
investor@masserv.com providing Folio Number, 
Name of the Shareholder, scanned copy of the 
Share Certificate (Front and Back), PAN( Self attested 
scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR ( Self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) with subject line 
(Register E-mail ID Folio No (Mention Folio No) of 
VASA Denticity Limited.

For Demat Shareholders 

Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and 
register your email address as per the process advised 
by DP.

21.	In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and 
SEBI Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the 
Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent by electronic 
mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses 
are registered with the Company / Depositories. 
Further, those members who have not registered 
their e-mail addresses and mobile nos. and in 
consequence could not be served the Notice of 
the AGM and Annual Report may temporarily 
get themselves registered with RTA by emailing 
for obtaining the same. Members are requested 
to support our commitment to environmental 
protection by choosing to receive the Company’s 
communications through e- mail going forward.
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Members may note that the Notice and Annual 
Report 2023-24 will also be available on the 
Company’s website www.dentalkart.com, 
websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., NSE Limited at 
www.nseindia.com and on the website of NSDL 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

22.	In case a person has become a member of the 
Company after dispatch of the AGM Notice, but on   
or before the cut-off date for e-voting i.e., Monday, 
September 23, 2024, such person may obtain the 
User ID and Password from RTA by e-mail request on 
investor@masserv.com. However, if the 
shareholder is already registered with NSDL for 
remote e-voting   then   he/   she   can   use   his/ 
her existing user ID and password for casting the 
vote. If a member forgets the password, it can be 
reset by using ‘Forgot User Details/ Password’ or 
‘Physical User Reset Password?’ option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

23.	The voting rights of the shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 
date i.e. Monday, September 23, 2024.

24.	A person who is not a Member as on the Cut Off 
date should treat this Notice for information 
purposes only.

25.	Members holding Equity Shares shall have One 
Vote per Share as shown against their holding. 

26.	Members may cast their vote separately for each 
business to be transacted in the Annual General 
Meeting. They may also elect not to vote on some 
resolution(s). 

27.	With a view to helping us serve the members better, 
members who hold shares in identical names and 
in the same order of names in more than one 
folio are requested to write to the Company to 
consolidate their holdings in one folio.

28.	In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the applicable provisions, the shareholders 
of the Company may nominate a person in whose 
name the shares held by him/them shall vest in 
the event of his/their death. Shareholders desirous 
of availing this facility may submit the requisite 
nomination form.

29.	In terms of SEBI Circular dated 09/12/2020, the 
depository shall send SMS/email alerts regarding 
the details of the upcoming AGM to the demat 
holders at least 2 days prior to the date of 

commencement of e-voting. Hence members are 
requested to update the mobile no./email ID with 
their respective depository participants.

30.	The Register of Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel and their Shareholding maintained 
under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the 
Directors are interested maintained under Section 
189 of the Act and the relevant documents referred 
to in the Notice will be available electronically for 
inspection by the Members during the AGM. 

31.	Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM 
are as follows:

In terms of the provisions of section 108 of the Act, 
read with rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended 
(hereinafter called ‘the Rules’ for the purpose of this 
section of the Notice) and regulation 44 of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, the Company is providing facility 
of remote e-voting to exercise votes on the items of 
business given in the Notice of 8th Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) through electronic voting system, to 
members holding shares as on Monday, September 
23, 2024 (end of day), being the cut-off date fixed 
for determining voting rights of members, entitled to 
participate in the remote e-voting process, through 
the e-voting platform provided by NSDL or to vote at 
the e-AGM.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE 
E-VOTING, E-VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING 
GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 
September 27, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 
Sunday, September 29, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. The remote 
e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the 
record date (cut-off date) i.e., Monday, September 
23, 2024, may cast their vote electronically. The 
voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion 
to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut- off date, being Monday, 
September 23, 2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting 
system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting 
system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below:
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Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A.	 LOGIN METHOD FOR E-VOTING AND 
JOINING VIRTUAL MEETING FOR INDIVIDUAL 
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING SECURITIES IN 
DEMAT MODE

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 
on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their 
mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL.

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On 
the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to 
enter your existing User ID and Password. After 
successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click 
on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at https://eservices.
nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” 
or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 
“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You 
will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number held with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 

on the screen. After successful authentication, you 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 
you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 
you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.	

4.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL 
Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning 
the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest 
facility, can login through their existing user id and 
password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to 
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click 
on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
use your existing my easi username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will 
be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress 
as per the information provided by company. 
On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. Additionally, there is also 
links provided to access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers, so that the user can visit the 
e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option 
to register is available at CDSL website www.
cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.
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4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting 
page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN 
No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.
com home page. The system will authenticate the 
user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting 
option where the evoting is in progress and also 
able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders (holding securities in 
demat mode) login through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 

logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve 
User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned 
website.

HELPDESK FOR INDIVIDUAL SHAREHOLDERS 
HOLDING SECURITIES IN DEMAT MODE FOR ANY 
TECHNICAL ISSUES RELATED TO LOGIN THROUGH 
DEPOSITORY I.E. NSDL AND CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on 
e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4.	 Your User ID details are given below :
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Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical  Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 
then user ID is 101456001***

5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

A.	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 
vote.

B.	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 
which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

C.	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

i.	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. 
Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open 
the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or 
folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial 
password’. 

ii.	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6.	  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a.	  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 
NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b.	  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c.	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc.

d.	 Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 
system of NSDL.

7.	 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.	 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.	 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join 
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join 
General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.	 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able 
to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose voting cycle and 
General Meeting is in active status.

2.	 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to 
cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. 
For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 
“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”.

3.	 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page 
opens.

4.	 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options 
i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote 
and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.

5.	  Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast 
successfully” will be displayed.

6.	  You can also take the printout of the votes cast 
by you by clicking on the print option on the 
confirmation page.

7.	  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, 
you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR SHAREHOLDERS

1.	 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant 
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to harish.cs1983@gmail.
com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.  

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their 
Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority 
Letter etc. by clicking on «Upload Board Resolution 
/ Authority Letter» displayed under «e-Voting» tab 
in their login.

2.	 It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confidential. Login 
to the e-voting website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 
password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” 
or “Physical User Reset Password?” option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the 
password.

3.	 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently 
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available 
at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.
com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 
1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Amit Vishal at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are 
not registered with the depositories  for procuring 
user id and password and registration of e mail ids 

for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.	 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to investor@masserv.com or 
cs@dentalkart.com.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned 
copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investor@masserv.com or 
cs@dentalkart.com. 

3.	 If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 
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login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

4.	 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

5.	 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update 
their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1.	 The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 
remote e-voting.

2.	 Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

3.	 Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4.	 The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting 
on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1.	 Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL 
e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General 
meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join 
General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the 
EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and 
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

2.	 Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

3.	 Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting.

4.	 Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5.	 Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 (ten) days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at Company email ID – 
cs@dentalkart.com or info@dentalkart.com. The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the 
AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 10 (ten) days prior to meeting mentioning 
their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id – cs@
dentalkart.com). These queries will be replied to by the Company suitably by email. 

6.	 Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 
views/ask questions during the meeting.
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7.	 Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. However, 
they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM 

8.	 If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such 
shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to 
the shareholders attending the meeting. 

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

1.	 A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 
e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

2.	 Mr. Harish Kumar, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No 9504 and Certificate of Practice no 
8625), has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to 
scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

3.	 The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, 
allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, for all those members who are present VC / OAVM at the 
AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

4.	 The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, will first count the votes cast at the meeting 
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not 
in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, 
a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a 
person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting 
forthwith.

5.	 The Scrutinizer shall within two (2) days of conclusion of the AGM submit his Scrutinizer Report of the total 
votes cast in favour or against, if any to the Chairman or any Director of the Company or any other person 
authorized who shall declare the results of voting forthwith. 

6.	 The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.dentalkart.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and communicated to the NSE Limited.

For and on Behalf of the Company 
VASA Denticity Limited

Sd/- 
Akhilesh 

Company Secretary 
Membership No.: A70791 

Date: September 07, 2024
Place: Delhi            
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EXPLANATORY  STATEMENT TO THE NOTICE CONVENING THE 8TH ANNUAL GENRAL  MEETING (AGM 
NOTICE) PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE 
BOARD OF INDIA (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND 
THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE ICSI

Item No. 3

Change in Designation of Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi (DIN:- 05216282) from Additional Director (Non-Executive 
& Independent) to Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company: 

Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi was appointed as an Additional Independent Director with effect from March 11th, 2024, 
in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to Section 161 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office up to the date of ensuring Annual General Meeting of 
the Company. The Board is of the view that the appointment of Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi on the Company Board 
is desirable and would be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said resolution No 3 for 
approval by the members of the Company. None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 
/ their relatives except Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi himself, in any way concerned or interested, in the said resolution. 
The board recommends the said resolution to be passed as an ordinary resolution.
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Annexure A
Additional information on directors recommended for appointment / reappointment as required 

under Regulation 36 of the LODR Regulations and applicable secretarial standards

Names Dr. Vikas Agarwal Mr Parmeshwar Ravi

Brief resume Dr. Vikas Agarwal is a dental surgeon 
by profession and a serial entrepreneur 
by choice with a demonstrated history 
of working in the health wellness and  
fitness industry. An Alumnus of Maulana 
Azad Institute of Dental Sciences and 
an avid product expert who likes to 
keep himself updated with all the latest 
dental product and technologies at 
international level. He is the technical 
product expert and brain behind 
Dentalkart.com. His entrepreneurship 
journey began at college itself. He has 
successfully boot strapped Dentalkart.
com and made it grow at the highest 
pace possible.

With 30 years of experience in HR, 
including over 15 years as the Head of 
Function across diverse industries, he 
is currently consulting with a focus on 
addressing People Problems and Safety 
Issues. Throughout his career, he has 
consistently strived to help employees, 
particularly young professionals, 
connect with the organization and thrive 
in the workplace. Additionally, he has 
played a key role in building capacity 
and capability within the organizations 
he has served, contributing to their 
long-term success and growth.

Director Identification Number 7487686 5216282

Date of Birth 14.02.1989 12.02.1966

Age 35 58

Nationality Indian Indian

Date of Joining the Board 29.08.2016 11.03.2024

Relationship with other 
Director

Brother of Mr Sandeep Agarwal, Whole-
Time Director of the Company NA

Qualification
Bachelor of Dental Surgery from  
Maulana Azad Institute of Dental 
Sciences

Master of Business Laws from NLSUI, 
Bangalore

Expertise More than 10 years as Doctor More than 30 years

Number of shares held in the 
Company

6355500 0

List of Directorships held in 
Companies

Waldent Innovation Private Limited NA

Names of listed entities 
in which she holds the 
directorship and the 
membership of Committees of 
the board

Nil Nil
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Members,
Your directors have pleasure to presenting the 8th (Eighth) Annual Report on the business and operations of 
the Company together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year ending on March 31, 2024.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financial performance of the Company for the financial year ending on March 31, 2024 is summarized 
below:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars As on March 31st 2024 As on March 31st 2023

Paid-up Share Capital 1,601.62 1,284.22

Total Revenue 17331.48 12,379.59

Total Expenses 15,390.76 11,330.75

Depreciation 100.18 53.60

Profit before tax 1,940.72 995.24

Total Tax Expense 432.93 235.16

Profit/(Loss) after taxation 1,507.79 760.08

RESERVES & SURPLUS

During the Financial year company earned net profit of Rs. 1,50,779,000 and the same has been transferred 
to the General Reserve of the Company.

DIVIDEND

To strength the financial position of the company and to augment working capital, your director did not 
declare any dividend including interim dividend.
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STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND
FUTURE OUTLOOK
	

INDIAN DENTAL CARE INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

India climbed to the 63rd rank among 190 countries in the World Bank’s ‘Ease of Doing Business’ rankings in 
2020. The World Bank’s Logistics Performance Index (LPI) 2023 has ranked India at 38th position (out of 139 
economies), recording an improvement of 6 positions. As of 2024, the Indian healthcare sector is one of India’s 
largest employers as it employs a total of 7.5 million people. Progress in telemedicine, virtual assistants, and 
data analytics is expected to create 2.7-3.5 million new tech jobs.

Rising income levels, an ageing population, growing health awareness and a changing attitude towards 
preventive healthcare is expected to boost healthcare services demand in the future. The low cost of medical 
services has resulted in a rise in the country’s medical tourism, attracting patients from across the world. 
Moreover, India has emerged as a hub for R&D activities for international players due to its relatively low cost 
of clinical research.

The healthcare sector, as of 2024 is one of India’s largest employers, employing a total of 7.5 million people. 
The demand for Indian healthcare professionals is expected to double nationally and globally by 2030 due to 
a shortage of healthcare workers in India, where there are only 1.7 nurses per 1,000 people and a doctor-to-
patient ratio of 1:1,500 nationwide.

The Indian dental industry consists mainly of independent clinics operated by individual dentists. However, 
there has been a recent emergence of dental specialty chains in major cities of India, which are often supported 
by venture capital or private equity funding. These chains have contributed significantly to the growth of the 
industry by promoting the use of advanced, high-quality tools, fittings, and equipment. Indian companies 
primarily focus on the production of clinical disposables, instruments, disinfectant tools, sterilizing equipment, 
impression materials, and temporary materials for tooth filling. 

The high-end segment of the market, such as dental implants, fittings, and prosthetics, is mainly dominated by 
foreign players with local presence in India, although many Indian companies also manufacture under license 
for foreign manufacturers while simultaneously engaging in trade and importing activities. Currently, there are 
around 5,000+ dental laboratories and 300+ dental institutes providing basic and advanced oral health care. 
As the number of dental chains increases, the organized dental clinics' share is expected to grow across the 
country. India has 3,00,000+ registered dental graduates, and 280,000+ are actively practicing dentists. 99% of 
the dental market in India is private. Over 50% of dentists work in and around major cities.
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OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY FOR LAST THREE FINANCIAL YEARS IS GIVEN BELOW:

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

Number of Orders 430574 316,795 202,335

Number of Customer served 90389 73,542 61,465

Revenue from operations 
(Rs. In lakhs) 17,188.31 12,326.78 7,692.05

SUCCESSFUL LISTING ON THE NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company’s shares were listed on NSE SME exchange on June 02, 2023 at a whopping premium of 65 per 
cent against its price band of Rs. 121 to Rs. 128 per equity share. The Company’s stock opened at Rs. 211 per 
share. The Company pursuant to the Initial Public Offering offered 42,24,000 Equity Shares of face value of 
Rs. 10/- each, comprising of fresh issue of 31,74,000 Equity Shares and Offer for Sale of 10,50,000 for public 
subscription. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as required under Regulation 34 
of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Regulations) Regulations, 2015 is given as a separate statement 
forming part of the Annual Report.

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND LISTING

During the year under review, there has been no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company. 

The Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company as on date is Rs. 16,01,62,080/- (Rupees Sixteen Crores Sixty-Two 
Lacs and Eighty Rupees Only) divided into 1,60,16,208 (Rupees One Crore Sixty Lacs and Sixteen Thousand 
Two Hundred and Eight only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only).

Further, the Company has got listed on NSE SME on June 02, 2023 and offered 42,24,000 Equity Shares of face 
value of Rs. 10/- each, comprising of fresh issue of 31,74,000 Equity Shares and Offer for Sale of 10,50,000 for 
public subscription. 

The Annual Listing Fees for the year 2024-25 has already been paid.

CHANGES IN REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

During the year under review, there was no change in the Registered Office of the Company.

The Registered Office of the Company is situated at Khasra No. 714, Village P.O. Chattarpur, South Delhi- 110074.
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MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED 
BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
RELATES AND DATE OF THIS REPORT

During the period under review, no material changes, events & commitments affecting the financial position 
of the Company have occurred.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

During the period under review, no order has been passed by the authorities which impacts the going concern 
status and company’s operations in future.

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES

During the period under review, the Company acquired 100% shareholding of Waldent Innovation Private 
Limited making it the Wholly Owned Subisidiary of the Company. The Salient features of the financial statement 
of the Subsidiary & Joint Venture and Associate Companies in Form AOC-1 has been annexed as ‘Annexure – I’.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company has Six Directors comprising of two Executive Directors and Four Non-
Executive Directors out of which Three are Independent Directors. There is also one woman director along 
with Chief Financial Officer and Whole time Company Secretary. 

Change in Directors /Key Managerial Personnel till the date of this Report:
The details about the changes in Directors or Key Managerial Personnel by way of Appointment, change in 
designation, Resignation, Death, Dis-qualification, variation made or withdrawn etc. are as follows:

 S. No. Name Designation Nature of Change With effect from

1  Mr Sandeep Aggarwal Whole Time Director Re-appointment September 20, 2023

2  Ms. Kriti Arora Company Secretary Resignation November 03, 2023

3  Mr. Yashank Taneja Company Secretary Appointment November 03, 2023

4 Mr Parmeshwar Ravi Additional Independent 
Director Appointment March 11, 2024
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5  Mr. Yashank Taneja Company Secretary Resignation June 29, 2024

6  Mr. Akhilesh Company Secretary Appointment August 22, 2024

WOMAN DIRECTOR

In terms of the proviso of Section 149(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, as 
applicable for the time being in force and any other applicable provisions, of any, your Company has complied 
with the requirement of having at least one-Woman Director on the Board of the Company i.e., Mrs. Akanksha 
Aggarwal (DIN:10056201), appointed as Woman Director effective from March 01, 2023 of the Company.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Dr Vikas Agarwal (Chairman & Managing Director), Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal (Whole time Director and Chief 
Financial Officer) and Mr. Akhilesh (Company Secretary) are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company, 
in accordance with the provisions of Rule 8 and Rule 8A of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 and Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTOR RETIRE BY ROTATION

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of the Association of the 
Company, all directors except Independent Directors shall be liable to retire by rotation and out of that, one-
third of such directors shall retire from the office every year. The directors who shall retire by rotation at every 
AGM shall be those who have been longest in the office since their last appointment. 

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(13) of the Companies Act, 2013, the retirement of directors 
by rotation shall not be applicable to the Independent Directors.

Accordingly, Dr Vikas Agarwal (DIN: 10056201), the Managing Director of the Company, being longest in his 
office amongst the Directors is liable to retire by rotation this year. However, being eligible, he has offered 
his candidature for re-appointment. This shall not constitute a break in the office of Dr Vikas Agarwal (DIN: 
10056201) as the Managing Director of the Company.

BOARD’S OPINION REGARDING INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE 
PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors appointed during the year under review are 
person(s) of integrity and possess core skills/expertise/competencies (including the proficiency) as identified 
by the Board of Directors as required in the context of Company's business(es) and sector(s) for the Company 
to function effectively.
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BOARD EVALUATION

As per Section 134 of the Companies Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

The Board of Directors carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees, and 
Individual Directors in accordance with the Act, Listing Regulations, and Governance Guidelines. The 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee led an internal evaluation process to assess the performance of 
the Board, its committees, and individual directors. The performance of Individual Directors was reviewed 
by the Board and the NRC, with criteria such as preparedness, constructive contributions, and input in 
meetings. Non-Independent Directors, the Board as a whole, and the Chairman of the Company were 
evaluated at a separate meeting of Independent Directors, with input from Executive and Non-Executive 
Directors. The evaluation results were discussed at the Board meeting, where an action plan was agreed 
upon. 

DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, 
COMMITTEES AND POLICIES
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

As on March 31, 2024, the Board has following committees which have been constituted to oversee specific 
operational areas in compliance with the requirements of the business and relevant provisions of the applicable 
laws and status;

•	 Audit Committee

•	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

•	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee 

•	 Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The Audit Committee of your Company comprises of the following Members:

•	 Mr. Varun Chugh, Independent Director (Chairman)

•	 Mr. Ravi Kant Jagetiya, Independent Director (Member)

•	 Dr. Vikas Agarwal, Chairman and Managing Director (Member)

MEETING AND ATTENDANCE

6 (Six) committee meeting were held during financial year 2023-24,  as against the statutory requirement of 
four meetings on the below mentioned dates:

S. No. Date of Meeting
Attended by

%Attendance at Meeting
Mr. Varun 

Chugh
Mr. Ravi Kant 

Jagetiya
Dr. Vikas 
Agarwal

1 01-04-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

2 18-07-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100
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3 23-08-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

4 11-09-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

5 03-11-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

6 29-02-2024 Yes Yes Yes 100

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of your Company comprises of the following Members:

•	 Mr. Varun Chugh, Independent Director (Chairman)

•	 Mr. Ravi Kant Jagetiya, Independent Director (Member)

•	 Dr Akanksha Agarwal, Non- Executive Director (Member)

The Company has devised policy relating to the appointment of directors, payment of managerial 
remuneration, director’s qualifications and positive attributes of independence directors and other related 
matters as provided under the section 178(3) of companies Act, 2013. This Policy is available on the Company’s 
website at https://www.dentalKart.com/investors-new.

4 (Four) committee meeting were held during financial year 2023-24 on the below mentioned dates:

S. No. Date of Meeting
Attended by

%Attendance at Meeting
Mr. Varun 

Chugh
Mr. Ravi Kant 

Jagetiya
Dr Akanksha 

Agarwal

1 18-07-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

2 23-08-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

3 03-11-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

4 11-03-2024 Yes Yes No 66.67

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 and Schedule VII 
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of Directors comprises the following:

•	 Dr Vikas Agarwal, Chairman and Managing Director (Chairman)

•	 Mr. Ravi Kant Jagetiya, Independent Director (Member)

•	 Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal, Whole time Director & CFO (Member)

This Policy is available on the Company’s website at https://www.DentalKart.com/investors-new.

Under Section 135 of the Act, the Company was required to spend Rs. 10,24,000 (2%) of the average qualifying 
net profits of the last three financial years on CSR activities on projects in FY 2023-24. During the year under 
review, the Company has spent ` Rs. 10,30,000/- on CSR activities.
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 2 (Two) Committee meetings were held during financial year 2023-24 on the below mentioned dates:.

S. No. Date of Meeting
Attended by

%Attendance at Meeting
Dr Vikas 
Agarwal

Mr. Ravi Kant 
Jagetiya

Mr. Sandeep 
Aggarwal

1 18-07-2023 Yes Yes Yes 100

2 29-02-2024 Yes Yes Yes 100

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The constituted Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprises the following:

•	 Mr. Varun Chugh, Independent Director (Chairman)

•	 Dr Vikas Agarwal, Chairman and Managing Director (Member)

•	 Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal, Whole time Director & CFO (Member)

1 (One) Committee meeting was held during financial year 2023-24 on the below mentioned date:

S. No. Date of Meeting
Attended by

%Attendance at Meeting
Mr. Varun 

Chugh
Dr Vikas 
Agarwal

Mr. Sandeep 
Aggarwal

1 30-03-2024 Yes Yes Yes 100

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the period under review, 11 (Eleven) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were held on 
the below mentioned dates:

S. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present

1 01-04-2023 5 5

2 17-04-2023 5 5

3 12-05-2023 5 5

4 22-05-2023 5 5

5 30-05-2023 5 5

6 18-07-2023 5 5

7 23-08-2023 5 5

8 11-09-2023 5 5

9 03-11-2023 5 5

10 12-12-2023 5 3

11 29-02-2024 5 4
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ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS IN THE MEETINGS

S. No. Name of Director Board Meeting

No. of Meeting liable 
to attend

No. of Meeting 
attended

% of Meeting 
attended

1 Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal 11 11 100

2 Mr. Vikas Agarwal 11 10 90.90

3 Mrs. Akanksha 
Aggarwal 11 09 81.81

4 Mr. Ravi Jagetiya 11 11 100

5 Mr. Varun Chugh 11 11 100

6 Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi* NA NA NA

*Mr. Parmeshwar Ravi assumed office as an Independent Director of the Company on March 11, 2024.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY

S. No. Type of Meeting Date of Meeting Total Members Members Present

1 Annual General 
Meeting 20-09-2023 992 8

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(c) &134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your directors 
confirm that:

•	 In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ending on march 31, 2024, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

•	 The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company as at 31st march, 2024 and of the profit /loss of the company for that period;

•	 The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the companies act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and 
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

•	 The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

•	 The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and such internal 
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

•	 The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

All Independent Directors of the Company have given their declarations that they meet the criteria of 
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independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations. 

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the criteria of independence specified in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 and 6 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 
Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Independent Directors have 
also confirmed that they have complied with the Company's Code of Business Conduct & Ethics laid down for 
the Board of Directors, Senior Management Personnel and other Employees.

STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL WITH REFERENCE TO THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The term “internal financial controls” means the policies and procedures adopted by the company for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

The management has taken all necessary steps to plug the internal control weaknesses. The management has 
implemented an effective and meaningful system in place to safeguard the assets of the company. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As per the Guidelines and directions of the SEBI and Stock Exchange accordingly the Company has been 
adhering to the directions and guidelines, as required and if applicable on the Company size and type as 
per Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Corporate 
Governance is not applicable on SME Listed Entities.

MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATE 

In terms of the Listing Regulations, the certificate, as prescribed in Part B of Schedule II of the said Regulations, 
has been obtained from the Chief Financial Officer and Managing Director of the Company, for the financial 
year 2023-24 with regard to the financial statements and other matters. The said certificate forms part of this 
Annual Report.

RATIO OF REMUNERATION OF EACH DIRECTOR TO THE MEDIAN EMPLOYEE’S REMUNERATION AND 
OTHER PRESCRIBED DETAILS

Section 197 of Companies Act, 2013 deals with the overall maximum managerial remuneration and managerial 
Remuneration in case of absence or inadequacy of profits. According to this section, the total managerial 
remuneration payable by a public company, to its directors, including managing director and whole-time 
director, and its manager in respect of any financial year shall not exceed the prescribed limit.

The details with respect to the remuneration of directors and employees as required under Section 197 of the 
Act and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
annexed as ‘Annexure – II’.

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism 
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for directors and employees in conformation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, to report concerns about unethical behaviour. This Policy is available on the Company’s website 
at https://www.DentalKart.com/investors-new.

DEPOSITS

Section 73-76 of the Companies Act, 2013 deals with acceptance of deposit from members, directors, director’s 
relatives and public only in case of the eligible companies.

The Company has not accepted any public deposit during the period under review.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company did not enter into any transaction which falls under the 
category of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof as applicable for the time being in force.

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under 
including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, as applicable for the time being in force or 
any other applicable provisions, if any, the Company has not entered into any transaction with related parties 
during the period under review. Thus, disclosure in Form AOC-2 is not required 

In the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has ended its Related party transactions with Vasa Dental 
Supplier, The Dentgist Company, Indian Dental Company, being the Sole proprietorships in the name of Dr 
Vikas Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company. The business of these Sole proprietorships has ceased its 
business operations. 

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

Statutory Auditors: 
M/s. KRA & Co. (FRN: 020266N), Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company w.e.f., September 20, 2023 to conduct the audit for a period of 5 Years, from the conclusion of 
7th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 12th Annual General Meeting in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under including any statutory 
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, as applicable for the time being in force. The appointment is valid 
for the FY 2024-25. 

Auditors’ Report
No qualification has been raised by the Statutory Auditor in the Financial Statements of Financial Year 2023-24. 
Further, no fraud has been reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those which 
are reportable to the Central Government.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made there under, the 
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maintenance of cost records and provisions of cost audit are not applicable to your company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT AND SECRETARIAL AUDITORS REPORT

According to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Naresh Verma & Associates, Company 
Secretaries (FCS No. 5403, Certificate of Practice No. 4424), to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the Company. 
The Report of the Secretarial Auditor for FY 2023-24 is attached herewith as ‘ANNEXURE-II’.

EXPLANTION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR 
DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their reports. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted risk management policy including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, 
which is in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company.

Your Company recognizes risk management as an integral component of good corporate governance.

ANNUAL RETURN 

The Annual Return of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2024 as required under Section 92(3) of the 
Companies Act 2013 read with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on the Website of the Company at https://www.
DentalKart.com/investors-new.

  

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as under:

Conservation of Energy:

Steps taken for conservation NIL

Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy NIL

Capital investment on energy conservation equipments NIL

Technology Absorption:

Efforts made for technology absorption NIL

Benefits derived NIL

Expenditure on Research &Development, if any NIL

Details of technology imported, if any NIL
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Year of import NIL

Whether imported technology fully absorbed NIL

Areas where absorption of imported technology has not taken place, if any NIL

Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo (in Rs.):

Earnings 1,07,50,000

Outgo 41,79,15,000

COMPLIANCE WITH SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee and 
other applicable provisions under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013. Your director’s further state that during the year under review, there were no cases 
filed pursuant to the said Act.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards prescribed under Section 118(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) 
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

None of the Directors of your Company suffers from the disqualification enshrined under the provisions 
of section 164, 165, 167 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Directors of the Company have made necessary 
disclosures, as required under various provisions of the Act.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans from banks and financial institutions.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND 
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

There were no applications made or any proceedings were pending against the Company under the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the financial year under review.

Further, there was no instance of valuation of amount for settlement of loan(s) from Banks and Financial 
Institutions during the financial year under review.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM

The Company's shares are compulsorily tradable in electronic form. As on date, 100% of the Company's Paid-
up Equity Share Capital are in dematerialized form with both the Depositories.

The Company has established connectivity with both Depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited 
(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

The Company has appointed M/s. Mas Services Limited, a Category-I SEBI registered RTA as its Registrar and 
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Share Transfer Agent.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

Pursuant to the Regulation 9 of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, the Company is 
having the Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by Insiders. The said Code is available on 
the Company's website at the weblink https://www.dentalkart.com/investors-new.

THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE 
TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

These provisions are not applicable to the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board place on record their appreciations of the whole hearted and sincere co-operation received by 
the Company during the year from the employees, customers/ clients, bankers and various Government 
authorities at all levels.

Your directors also acknowledge gratefully to the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on 
your company.

By and on behalf of Board of Directors

VASA DENTICITY LIMITED

Sd/-

Dr. Vikas Agarwal
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 07487686

Date: August 22, 2024

Place:- Delhi
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Management Discussion and Analysis
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

HEALTHCARE ECONOMIC OVERVIEW: GLOBAL 
Personalized medicine, exponential technologies, disruptive competitors, expanded delivery sites, and 
redesigned payment models are injecting uncertainty into the global health economy, increasing the urgency 
for organizations to plan when and how to make future moves—as a market leader, fast follower, or niche 
player— to stay relevant and financially viable. 

To effectively address global issues, such as negative health, economic, and environmental effects caused by 
a single country or organization, it is important to have global collaboration. This is particularly important for 
stakeholders who generate a disproportionate impact, such as high-income countries, blue-chip corporations, 
and multinational corporations. The healthcare sector itself contributes to over 4% of global greenhouse gas 
emissions. At COP26, the Sustainable Markets Initiative (SMI) Health Systems Task Force was launched to 
promote a private-public partnership effort to accelerate the implementation of net-zero and patient-centric 
health systems through scalable action. This initiative recognizes the close interconnection between public 
and planetary health.

INDIAN ECONOMY OVERVIEW – GENERAL:
“Notwithstanding global headwinds, India remains the fastest growing major economy on the strength 
of its strong domestic demand and supportive policies,” said ADB Country Director for India Mio Oka. “The 
Government of India’s efforts to boost infrastructure development while undertaking fiscal consolidation and 
provide an enabling business environment will help in increased manufacturing competitiveness to augment 
exports and drive future growth.” With inflation moderating to 4.6% in FY2024 and easing further to 4.5% in 
FY2025, monetary policy may become less restrictive, which will facilitate rapid offtake of bank credit. Demand 
for financial, real estate and professional services will grow while manufacturing will benefit from muted input 
cost pressures that will boost industry sentiment. Expectations of a normal monsoon will help boost growth 
of the agriculture sector. The government’s focus on fiscal consolidation, with a targeted deficit of 5.1% of GDP 
for FY2024 and 4.5% for FY2025, will enable the government to reduce its gross marketing borrowing by 0.9% 
of GDP in FY2024 and create further room for private sector credit. India’s current account deficit will widen 
moderately to 1.7% of GDP on rising imports for meeting domestic demand. Foreign direct investment will be 
affected in the near term due to tight global financial conditions but will pick up in FY2025 with higher industry 
and infrastructure investment. Goods exports will also be affected by lower growth in advanced economies 
but pick up in FY2025 as global growth improves.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

India climbed to the 63rd rank among 190 countries in the World Bank’s ‘Ease of Doing Business’ rankings in 
2020. The World Bank’s Logistics Performance Index (LPI) 2023 has ranked India at 38th position (out of 139 
economies), recording an improvement of 6 positions. As of 2024, the Indian healthcare sector is one of India’s 
largest employers as it employs a total of 7.5 million people. Progress in telemedicine, virtual assistants, and 
data analytics is expected to create 2.7-3.5 million new tech jobs.

Rising income levels, an ageing population, growing health awareness and a changing attitude towards 
preventive healthcare is expected to boost healthcare services demand in the future. The low cost of medical 
services has resulted in a rise in the country’s medical tourism, attracting patients from across the world. 
Moreover, India has emerged as a hub for R&D activities for international players due to its relatively low cost 
of clinical research.

The healthcare sector, as of 2024 is one of India’s largest employers, employing a total of 7.5 million

people. The demand for Indian healthcare professionals is expected to double nationally and globally by 2030 
due to a shortage of healthcare workers in India, where there are only 1.7 nurses per 1,000 people and a 
doctor-to-patient ratio of 1:1,500 nationwide.

The Indian dental industry consists mainly of independent clinics operated by individual dentists. However, 
there has been a recent emergence of dental specialty chains in major cities of India, which are often supported 
by venture capital or private equity funding. These chains have contributed significantly to the growth of the 
industry by promoting the use of advanced, high-quality tools, fittings, and equipment. Indian companies 
primarily focus on the production of clinical disposables, instruments, disinfectant tools, sterilizing equipment, 
impression materials, and temporary materials for tooth filling.

The high-end segment of the market, such as dental implants, fittings, and prosthetics, is mainly dominated 
by foreign players with local presence in India, although many Indian companies also manufacture under 
license for foreign manufacturers while simultaneously engaging in trade and importing activities. Currently, 
there are around 5,000+ dental laboratories and 300+ dental institutes providing basic and advanced oral 
health care. As the number of dental chains increases, the organized dental clinics' share is expected to grow 
across the country.

India's hospital industry is experiencing significant interest from investors, both domestic and international. 
The government's intention to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the country's GDP by 2025 is expected 
to be advantageous for the hospital sector. The Indian Investment Grid (IIG), which is a platform managed by 
Invest India for displaying investment opportunities by sector, has almost 600 investment possibilities in the 
hospital/medical infrastructure sub-sector valued at USD 32 billion (INR 2.3 lakh crore).
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OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Opportunities:

•	 Expanding Dental Industry: The dental industry continues to experience robust growth driven by increasing 
global awareness of oral health, preventive care, and aesthetics. This expanding market presents significant 
opportunities for DentalKart to increase its market share and meet the growing demand.

•	 Digital Transformation and E-Commerce: The ongoing digital transformation in the healthcare sector, 
coupled with the increasing preference for online shopping, has further solidified e-commerce as a critical 
channel. DentalKart can leverage its strong online presence to offer an extensive range of products, 
providing convenience and accessibility to a diverse customer base.

•	 Global Market Expansion: DentalKart's scalable online platform positions the company to reach and serve 
customers globally. By entering new international markets, DentalKart can diversify its revenue streams 
and mitigate risks associated with regional market fluctuations.

•	 Innovation in Dental Technology: The dental sector is at the forefront of innovation, with advancements in 
materials, equipment, and digital dentistry. By continuously updating and expanding its product portfolio 
to include the latest technological solutions, DentalKart can attract forward-thinking dental professionals 
and clinics seeking cutting-edge tools.

•	 Strategic B2B Collaborations: Building and nurturing partnerships with dental clinics, hospitals, 
educational institutions, and corporate dental chains can lead to bulk orders and secure long-term, 
recurring business relationships. These collaborations can also provide insights into market needs, driving 
product development.

•	 Sustainability and Eco-Friendly Products: The increasing demand for environmentally sustainable and 
ethically sourced products presents an opportunity for DentalKart to differentiate itself by offering eco-
friendly dental solutions, appealing to conscious consumers and institutions.

Threats:

•	 Complex Regulatory Landscape: Navigating the diverse regulatory requirements across different regions, 
especially as DentalKart expands internationally, can be challenging. Compliance with these regulations is 
essential but can be resource-intensive and may pose a barrier to rapid market entry.

•	 Supply Chain Vulnerabilities: Global supply chain disruptions, whether due to geopolitical tensions, 
pandemics, or logistical challenges, can affect product availability and delivery timelines. DentalKart must 
maintain strong relationships with suppliers and consider diversifying its supply chain to mitigate these 
risks.

•	 Technological Disruption: Rapid advancements in dental technology could render existing products 
obsolete or necessitate significant investments in research and development. Staying at the forefront of 
innovation while managing costs is crucial.

•	 Competition: The dental product market remains highly competitive, with both established players and 
new entrants continually vying for market share. To maintain a competitive edge, DentalKart must continue 
to innovate, deliver high-quality products, and provide exceptional customer service.

•	 Counterfeit and Substandard Products: The risk of counterfeit or substandard products infiltrating online 
marketplaces remains a concern. Such products can damage DentalKart's reputation and customer trust, 
leading to potential legal issues and financial losses.

•	 Evolving Consumer Preferences: Shifts in consumer behaviour, driven by economic conditions or changes 
in dental care practices, could impact purchasing patterns. DentalKart needs to stay attuned to these 
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changes and adapt its offerings to meet evolving customer needs.

•	 Cybersecurity and Data Privacy Concerns: With increasing reliance on digital platforms for transactions 
and customer interactions, DentalKart faces heightened risks of cyberattacks and data breaches. Ensuring 
robust cybersecurity measures and compliance with data protection regulations is vital to maintaining 
customer trust and avoiding legal repercussions.

•	 Price Sensitivity and Economic Uncertainty: In times of economic uncertainty, customers may become 
more price-sensitive, impacting DentalKart's sales and profitability. Striking the right balance between 
competitive pricing and maintaining healthy profit margins remains a key challenge.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Over the years we have seen steady growth in the number of orders and consequently our retail business area.

OUTLOOK

DENTAL TOURISM: The Indian dental market is poised for exponential growth, with predictions indicating 
that India will become a global hub for dental products and materials by 2025. The rise in dental tourism is 
expected to contribute significantly to this growth, as India continues to attract international patients seeking 
high-quality, cost-effective dental care. This trend is further bolstered by India's advanced dental technologies 
and skilled professionals, making it a preferred destination for dental procedures.

DENTAL TREATMENT COST: The global trend of high dental treatment costs, particularly in developed 
countries, is expected to persist. With critical dental treatments and surgeries often not fully covered by 
insurance, individuals are increasingly seeking affordable alternatives. India's competitive pricing for dental 
care, combined with its reputation for quality treatment, positions it as a top choice for those seeking affordable 
dental procedures, a trend likely to accelerate in the coming years.

VAST MARKET: The Indian dental market is vast and rapidly expanding, supported by over 5,000 dental 
laboratories and more than 300 dental institutes. Future projections indicate that India is set to become the 
largest producer and supplier of dental products and materials by the end of the decade. This growth is driven 
by increasing domestic demand and rising exports, solidifying India's position in the global dental market.

EXPECTED GROWTH: The Indian dental market is forecasted to experience a compound annual growth rate 
(CAGR) of over 20% in the next few years, driven by significant investments in multispecialty hospitals and 
dental chains. These facilities will offer a comprehensive range of dental services, from general dentistry to 
specialized treatments, catering to the growing demand for advanced dental care. The market's growth is 
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further supported by increased awareness of oral health and the adoption of innovative dental technologies.

ORAL CANCER CHALLENGE: India continues to face a significant public health challenge as the ‘oral cancer 
capital’ of the world. Oral cancer accounted for nearly 30% of all cancer cases in 2023, with projections 
indicating a rise in cases due to the high consumption of tobacco products. This trend underscores the urgent 
need for preventive measures and public health initiatives to combat the growing incidence of oral cancer in 
India.

GLOBAL VS. ASIAN MARKETS: The Asian market for dental materials is expected to outpace the global 
dental market, with India leading the charge. India's dental market is projected to achieve a significant CAGR, 
outstripping many Western markets in growth. This trend is fueled by rising healthcare expenditure, increased 
dental awareness, and a growing middle-class population in India, which is expected to drive demand for 
dental products and services well into the future

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Given the wide scale of operations, our Company is exposed to an array of strategic and operational risks. We have 
an elaborate risk management system in place, which is aimed at identifying, analysing, assessing, mitigating, 
and monitoring risks or potential threats to achievement of our strategic and business objectives covering 
various aspects of our business, including operations, legal, treasury, regulatory, strategic and financial. The 
Audit Committee has put in place appropriate risk management guidelines, including risk appetite policy, and 
periodically reviews the risk heat map and the mitigation plan for all high and critical risks or potential events 
that may have adverse impact on the reputation, operations, and financials of the Company. It also reviews 
and suggests measures undertaken by the Company to avoid, transfer, control, and mitigate such risks. The 
Company’s risk management framework is a combination of formally documented policies in certain areas, 
such as financial, legal, and regulatory, and an informal approach to risk management, among others. The risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed on a periodical basis to reflect changes in market conditions, 
business activities, and levels thereof.

In the opinion of the Board, none of the risks faced by our Company threaten its existence. However, keeping 
in view the areas in which our Company operates, risks with respect to litigation by/against our Company or 
regulatory directions, may impact various cost lines, and become material in nature.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

We have put in place internal control systems and a structured internal audit process vested with the task of 
safeguarding the assets of the organisation and ensuring reliability and accuracy of the accounting and other 
operational data. The internal audit department reports to the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Similarly, we maintain a system of monthly review of the business as a key operational control, wherein the 
performance of units is reviewed and corrective action is initiated. We also have in place a capital expenditure 
control system for authorising spend on new assets and projects. Accountability is established for implementing 
the projects on time and within the approved budget.

An extensive risk-based programme of concurrent audits, internal audits, theme-based audits, exceptional 
reporting and IT based transaction controls, coupled with constant management reviews and dash boarding 
of data, provide assurance to the Board regarding efficiency and efficacy of internal controls. The internal 
audit plan is dynamic, and aligned to the business objectives of the Company, and is reviewed by the Audit 
Committee periodically, including the high and medium risk observations, emanating from such audits. 

During the year under review, these controls were assessed and no reportable material weaknesses in the 
design or operations were observed. The statutory auditors, during the course of their audit, did not find any 
material weaknesses in controls and / or misstatements resulting from lack of internal controls.
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FINANCIAL & OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review the Company Continues to undertake its business of providing various Dental 
products. Accordingly, the Company’s Income from Operations was Rs. 17188.31 Lakh as against the Income 
from Operations of ₹ 12326.78 Lakh in the corresponding previous year. The Company earned a Net Profit of 
Rs.1507.58 Lakh during the year as against a profit of Rs. 760.08 in the corresponding previous year.

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024, have been prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Accounting Principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed 
under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

HUMAN CAPITAL

WORKFORCE & CULTURE
Building on our strong fundamentals, DentalKart is striving through its journey of business expansion, growth 
and substantial milestones such as going public. We take the term workforce very seriously and thereby imply 
all possible measures to make DentalKart an ideal and assertive place to work at. We understand that the force 
that drives the company to reach heights lies with the workforce. Therefore, we have taken various initiatives 
for employee care and safety during the year. We employed 131 permanent employees during FY 2023-24, 
taking our permanent employee strength to 190 at the end of FY 2023-24.    

TALENT ATTRACTION & RETENTION
With today’s highly competitive talent market, we have opted for various new age methodologies to attract 
and retain talent across domains to optimize high growth, complexity and scale. We emphasized our focus on 
gender and cultural diversity. Our voluntary attrition rate is well within the new age industry indicators, and we 
could successfully retain our crucial and high skilled talent with effective reward programmes, engagements 
and trainings. We also came up with ‘VASA ESOS 2023’ Scheme to attract and retain key talents working with 
the Company, by way of rewarding their performance and motivate them to contribute to the overall corporate 
growth and profitability.

Our aim is to promote an employee centric work ecosystem built on the superior modules of open 
communication, engagement, innovation, and growth. We employ various channels for attracting new 
talent. These include job posting on company website, job postings on social media platforms like LinkedIn, 
and employee referrals. We do not discriminate at any stage of the recruitment process. We practice zero 
discrimination and conduct ourselves accordingly

CULTURE & VALUES

In 2023-24, we deeply focused in embedding the values in our employees starting right from new employee 
induction, onboarding, information sharing, and educating about the core values of the company incorporating 
values in our employees regarding processes, systems and policies. We also took various employee engagement 
initiatives, grievance redressals and feedbacks to optimize a better working environment and culture. We also 
ai to keep driving such initiatives to build a healthy and positive working environment for our employees to 
scale sense of belonginess and a culture of recognition.

LEARNING & AUTOMATION

With a goal of achieving excellence in employee experience, we took various initiatives to automate the HR 
processes within the company to bring operational efficiencies with our processes. We worked on providing a 
compliant and efficient tool with ease to access information, policies, and processes. We are also investing in 
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strengthening the Reward management system to recognize high performance and talent retention strategy. 
We also encourage our employees to innovate with the current ways of working and cross-functional learnings. 
We value our employees for their entrepreneurial mindset and ideas. We aim to enhance their learning and 
growth within the company with various learning & development initiatives. 

At the end of FY 2023-24, we had a total of 190 permanent employees.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT)

Our deep understanding of local needs and our ability to adapt quickly to changing consumer preferences 
has helped our performance driven growth. Our robust IT systems have significantly aided this growth by 
simplifying complex processes throughout our operations.

Our IT systems are equipped with an array of data management tools specific to our business needs and 
support key aspects of our business. IT has enabled our cash management systems, in-store systems, logistics 
systems, human resources, project management, maintenance, and other administrative functions. This 
implementation has contributed positively towards minimising product shortage, pilferage, out of stock 
situations etc., and has increased overall operational efficiency.

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

The following table shows a summary of specific key financial ratios

S.no Key financial 
ratios Methodology In FY

2023-24
FY

2022-23
FY

2021-22
FY

2020-21

1 Return on net 
worth EBIT/Net Worth*100 % 28.50% 65.39% 94.71% 74.62%

2
Return on 
capital 
employed

EBIT/Capital Employed*100 % 28.47% 61.43% 60.33% 20.17%

3 Debt equity 
ratio Total Debt/Total Equity Times 0.00 0.06 0.57 2.7

4 Basic EPS PAT/Weighted average number 
of shares Times 9.73 5.92 3.89 0.26

5 Gross profit 
margin

Gross Profit/Revenue from 
operation *100 % 27.60% 24.67% 24.99% 16.15%

6 EBITDA 
margin

EBITDA/Revenue from 
operation *100 % 11.82% 8.83% 7.46% 1.57%

7 Net profit 
margin

Profit After Tax / Revenue from 
Operations *100 % 8.70% 6.17% 6.49% 0.84%

8 Current ratio Current Asset / Current Liability Times 4.95 1.96 1.49 1.05
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9 Interest 
coverage ratio EBITDA / Finance Cost Times 280.96 27.46 14.03 15.93

10 Inventory 
turnover ratio Purchase / Closing Inventory Times 4.85 5.66 6.53 12.28

11
Trade 
receivable 
turnover ratio

Revenue from Operations / 
Trade Receivable Times 15.38 126.08 56.63 52.64

•	 Return on Net Worth: Return on Net Worth (RONW) is a measure of the profitability of a company expressed 
in percentage. Return on Net Worth is calculated by dividing the net income of the company by average 
shareholders’ equity. RONW decreased to 28.50% in FY 2023-24 from 65.39% in FY 2022-23 due to right 
issue in the Company.

•	 Return on Capital Employed: Return on capital employed (ROCE) is a financial ratio that can be used to 
assess a company’s profitability and capital efficiency. This ratio can help understand how well a company 
is generating profits from its capital as it is put to use. ROCE decreased to 28.47% in FY 2023-24 from 61.4% 
in FY 2022-23 due to increase in the Reserve of the Company as a result of previous year’s profit.

•	 Debt Equity Ratio: The debt-to-equity (D/E) ratio is used to evaluate a company’s financial leverage and 
is calculated by dividing a company’s total debt by its shareholder equity. It is a measure of the degree to 
which a company is financing its operations through debt versus wholly owned funds. The debt-to-equity 
ratio is a particular type of gearing ratio. It decreased to 0.001 times in FY 2023-24 from 0.6 times in FY 2022-
23 due to repayment of debt of the Company.

•	 Basic EPS: Earnings per share (EPS) is calculated as a company’s net profit attributable to equity holders 
divided by the weighted average outstanding number of equity shares. The resulting number serves as an 
indicator of a company’s profitability. Basic EPS increased to 9.73 times in FY 2023-24 from 5.92 times in FY 
2022-23 due to decrease in interest and own product sale growth.

•	 Gross Profit Margin: Gross profit margin is calculated as the amount of money left over from product 
sales after subtracting the cost of goods sold (COGS) as a percentage of its operating revenue. GP Margin 
decreased by 287 bps in FY 2023-24 to 27.50% from 24.67% in FY 2022-23 due to discounts and promotion 
schemes and increase in cost of goods sold.

•	 EBITDA Margin: EBITDA margin is a measure of a company’s operating profit as a percentage of its revenue.   
It increased by 299 bps to 11.82% in FY 2023-24 from 8.83% in FY 2022-23 due to Sales Growth, and high 
profit margin on owned products.

•	 Net Profit Margin: The net profit margin, or simply net margin, measures how much net income or profit 
is generated as a percentage of its revenue. It increased by   153 bps to 8.70% in FY 2023-24 from 6.17% in 
FY 2022-23 due to Sales Growth, and high profit margin on owned products.

•	 Current Ratio: Current ratio is a used to evaluate a company’s liquidity position and is calculated by 
dividing C ompany’s total current assets with current liabilities. It increased to 5 times in FY 2023-24 from 
2 times in FY 2022-23 due the increase is on account of increase in cash and bank balance as a result of 
capital raised through right issue and increase in inventory.

•	 Interest coverage ratio: Interest coverage ratio is used to determine how easily a company can pay 
interest on its outstanding debt and is calculated by dividing a company’s operating earnings before 
interest depreciation and tax with finance cost. Decrease is on account of repayment of debt.

•	 Inventory turnover ratio: Inventory turnover ratio is a measure showing how many times a company has 
sold and replaced inventory during a given period. The inventory turnover ratio is calculated by dividing 
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the cost of goods by average inventory for the same period. Decrease is on account of increase in cost of 
goods sold vis-à-vis increase in average inventory during the current year.

•	 Trade receivable turnover ratio: The trade receivables turnover ratio is a measure that quantifies a 
company’s effectiveness in collecting its trade receivables. The ratio also measures how many times a 
company’s receivables are converted into cash in a certain period of time. It decreased to 15.38 times in FY 
2023-24 from 126.1 times in FY 2022-23 due to Online Payments, Clear payment terms, and tighter Credit 
policy.

By and on behalf of Board of Directors

VASA DENTICITY LIMITED

Dr. Vikas Agarwal
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 07487686

Date:- 22.08.2024

Place:- Delhi
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MD/CFO CERTIFICATE  
(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015)

Pursuant to regulation 17 (8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we 
hereby certify that: 

•	 We have reviewed the financial statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year and that to the best 
of our knowledge and belief: 

•	 These statements do not contain any materially untrue 'statement or omit any material fact or contain 
statements that might be misleading; 

•	 These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

•	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct. 

•	 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that 
we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 
reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or 
operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose 
to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

•	 We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee: 

•	 Significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

•	 Significant changes in accounting policies during the year, if any, and that the same have been disclosed 
in the notes to the financial statements; and 

•	 That no instances of significant fraud have come to our notice.

By and on behalf of Board of Directors

VASA DENTICITY LIMITED

Sd/-								        Sd/-

Dr. Vikas Agarwal 						      Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal             
Chairman and Managing Director 				    Chief Financial Officer               
(DIN: 07487686) 						      (PAN: BIFPA3671M)		

Place: Delhi 

Date: 26.08.2024
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct and Ethics for the Members of the Board and Senior Management 
Personnel of the Company. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the Code of Conduct for the financial year 2023-24. Requisite declaration signed by Mr. Vikas Agarwal, 
Chairman & Managing Director to this effect is given below. 

Compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics as provided under Regulation 26 (3) of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior 
Management Personnel have affirmed compliance Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for the year ended 
March 31, 2024. 

By and on behalf of Board of Directors

VASA DENTICITY LIMITED

Sd/-

Dr. Vikas Agarwal
Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 07487686

Place: Delhi 

Date: 22.08.2024
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ANNEXURE-I
Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with
rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or 
joint ventures

Part A – Subsidiaries

(Amount in Hundred Rs.)

Sl. No. Particulars Waldent Innovations 
Private Limited

1 The date since when subsidiary was acquired August 23, 2023

2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the 
holding company’s reporting period. NA

3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the 
relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries. NA

4 Share capital 1,000

5 Reserves and surplus 6,573

6 Total assets 7,976

7 Total Liabilities 7,976

8 Investments 0

9 Turnover 29

10 Profit before taxation (846)

11 Provision for taxation (83)

12 Profit after taxation (763)

13 Proposed Dividend 0

14 Extent of shareholding (in percentage) 100%
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Part B – Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and 
Joint Ventures

The Company does not have Associate Company and Joint Venture; therefore, Part B is not applicable

By and on behalf of Board of Directors

VASA DENTICITY LIMITED

Sd/-								        Sd/-

Dr. Vikas Agarwal 						      Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal             
Chairman and Managing Director 				    Whole Time Director               
(DIN: 07487686) 						      (DIN: 07484533)		

Place: Delhi 

Date: 22.08.2024
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ANNEXURE-II

ANNUAL RETURN ON CSR ACTIVITY
•	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Company recognizes that corporate social responsibility is not merely compliance; it is a commitment to 
support initiatives that measurably improve the lives of under privileged section of the society by one or more 
of the focus areas as outlined below

Focused CSR Activities:

1.	Dental Scholarships: Fund scholarships for students who are pursuing degrees in dentistry. 

2.	Donation of Dental Supplies: Donate essential dental supplies to under-resourced clinics, hospitals, or 
dental schools, specifically in the rural areas where access to dental care may be limited.

3.	Oral Health Awareness Campaigns: Conduct free dental check-ups and oral hygiene awareness campaigns 
in underprivileged areas, schools, or rural communities by partnering with local health providers or NGOs.

4.	Support Dental Research: Provide funding for research in dental health, particularly in areas relevant to the 
Indian market. This could also involve developing partnerships with universities or research institutions.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. No. Name of Director Designation / Nature 
of Directorship

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year

Number of 
meetings of 

CSR Committee 
attended during 

the year

1 Dr Vikas Agarwal Chairman /Managing 
Director 2 2

2 Mr. Ravi Kant Jagetiya Member/ Independent 
Director 2 2

3 Mr. Sandeep Aggarwal Member/ Whole time 
Director 2 2

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by 
the board are disclosed on the website of the company.
The details of the Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects are available on the Company’s 
website at https://www.DentalKart.com/investors-new.

 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of 
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the 
report).
Not Applicable
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any

 Financial Year
Amount available for set-off 

from preceding financial 
years (in Rs)

Amount required to be set-
off for the financial year, if 

any (in Rs)

1 - - -

2 - - -

3 - - -

Total

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

Financial Year Net Profit Before Tax (Amount in Lakhs)

2022-23 985.33

2021-22 499.92

2020-21 50.57

Average Net Profit of previous three financial years 511.94

7.    (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 10,24,000/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.: NIL

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).: Rs. 10,24,000/-

8.    (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Rs. 10,30,000/-     	
       (Other than Ongoing Projects) 
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Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

Sl. No. Name of the Project

Item from the list 
of activities in 

schedule VII to the 
Act.

Local area (Yes/ 
No). Location of the project. Amount spent for 

the project (in Rs.).

Mode of 
implementation 

- Direct (Yes/
No).

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency.

    State. District.  Name 
CSR

 registration 
number.

1. Karnavati University I No Gandhinagar, Gujrat 10,30,000 Yes Karnavati 
University CSRO0059751

Total 10,30,000

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]: Rs. 10,30,000/- 

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent 
for the Financial Year. 

(in Rs.)

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5).

Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in Rs)

Amount Date of transfer. Name of the 
Fund- Amount. Date of 

transfer.

 Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per section 135(6).

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as per 

second proviso to section 135(5).

- - - - -

Rs. 10,30,000/- - -

Annual Report 2023-24

VASA Denticity Limited | 65



(f) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 
section 135(5) NIL

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year NIL

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 
activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-
(iv)] NIL

9. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

Sl. No. Preceding 
Financial Year.

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) 

(in Rs.)

Amount 
spent in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year (in Rs.).

Amount transferred to 
any fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per section 
135(6), if any.

Amount 
remaining to 
be spent in 
succeeding 

financial 
years. (in Rs.)

Name of 
the Fund

Amount 
(in Rs).

Date of 
transfer.

NIL

10. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 
amount spent in the Financial Year: Not Applicable
            Yes            √No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired 

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired 
through CSR spent in the financial year

(asset-wise details). 
(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).
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(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset.

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, 
their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the 
capital asset).

   

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
section 135(5).: Not Applicable
 

for and on behalf of 

VASA Denticity Limited

Dr. Vikas Agarwal
Managing Director

Date: August 22, 2024

Place:- Delhi
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ANNEXURE III
Statement under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

1.	The ratio of the remuneration of each Director and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) to the median 
remuneration of  the employees of the Company for the financial year 2023-24:

Sr. No. Name of Directors/ KMP Designation

Ratio of 
Remuneration 

of each Director 
/ Employee to 

the median 
remuneration

Remuneration (` in Lakh)

2023-24 2022-23

1 Dr. Vikas Agarwal Chairman and 
Managing Director   10.25 30.76 48.41

2 Mr Sandeep Agarwal
Whole Time director 
and Chief Financial 

Officer
  10.25 30.76 42.01

3 Dr Akanksha Aggarwal Non-executive 
director   -   - -

4 Mr Ravi Jagetiya*
Non-executive 
Independent 

director
  0.33 1 -

5 Mr Varun Chugh*
Non-executive 
Independent 

director
  0.33 1 -

6 Mr Parmeshwar Ravi
Non-executive 
Independent 

director
  -   - -

7 Ms Kriti Arora** Company Secretary   -   - -

8 Mr Yashank Taneja*** Company Secretary   1.55 4.65 -

*Only sitting fees paid for attending meetings
 **Ms Kriti Arora, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer resigned w.e.f. November 3, 2023.
 *** Mr Yashank Taneja, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer appointed w.e.f. November 3, 2023.

2.	The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary 
in the financial year 2023-24 as compared to financial year 2022-23:

Name of Directors/ KMP Designation Increase/ Decrease 
during the year

Dr. Vikas Agarwal Chairman and Managing Director -36%

Mr Sandeep Agarwal Whole Time director and Chief Financial Officer -27%
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Dr Akanksha Aggarwal Non-executive director 0%

Mr Ravi Jagetiya Non-executive Independent director 100%

Mr Varun Chugh Non-executive Independent director 100%

Mr Parmeshwar Ravi Non-executive Independent director 0%

Mr Kriti Arora Company Secretary 0%

Mr Yashank Taneja Company Secretary 100%

3.	The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year 2023-24:

 The percentage change in the median remuneration of all employees in the financial year was 7%.

4.	The number of permanent employees on the payrolls of Company as on 31 March, 2024:

 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on 31 March, 2024 was 190.

5.	Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the Managerial 
Personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the Managerial 
Remuneration and justification  thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the Managerial Remuneration:

Average percentage change made in the salaries of the employees other than the Managerial Personnel in the 
Financial Year was 10% vis a vis decrease of 31% in the salaries of Managerial Personnel.

6.	Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company:

We affirm that the remuneration is as per the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

Please note that the details required to be given as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company since the remuneration 
drawn by the Directors, KMP and Employees are below the limits specified.

Annual Report 2023-24

VASA Denticity Limited | 69



Sr
. N

o.
N

am
e

De
si

gn
at

io
n

Q
ua

lifi
ca

tio
ns

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
eq

ui
ty

 sh
ar

es
 

he
ld

Re
m

un
er

at
io

n 
Re

ce
iv

ed

w
he

th
er

 a
ny

 su
ch

 
em

pl
oy

ee
 is

 a
 re

la
tiv

e 
of

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
 o

r m
an

ag
er

 o
f 

th
e 

co
m

pa
ny

N
at

ur
e 

of
 E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

Da
te

 o
f 

Jo
in

in
g

Ag
e

Pr
ev

io
us

 
Co

m
pa

ny
Da

te
 O

f 
Ex

it
N

at
ur

e 
O

f 
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t

1
SA

N
DE

EP
 A

GG
AR

W
AL

W
ho

le
 T

im
e 

Di
re

ct
or

 &
 C

FO
M

as
te

r i
n 

La
w

10
26

.4
5%

36
00

00
0

Br
ot

he
r o

f D
r. 

Vi
ka

s 
Ag

ar
w

al
, M

an
ag

in
g 

Di
re

ct
or

Pe
rm

an
en

t
01

-J
an

-2
01

6
34

N
A

0
Pe

rm
an

en
t

2
VI

KA
S 

AG
AR

W
AL

M
an

ag
in

g 
Di

re
ct

or
Ba

ch
el

or
s i

n 
De

nt
al

 S
ur

ge
ry

10
39

.6
8%

36
00

00
0

Br
ot

he
r o

f M
r. 

Sa
nd

ee
p 

Ag
ga

rw
al

, W
ho

le
 T

im
e 

Di
re

ct
or

Pe
rm

an
en

t
01

-J
an

-2
01

6
35

N
A

0
Pe

rm
an

en
t

3
M

AN
IS

H
 K

U
M

AR
CH

IE
F 

TE
CH

N
IC

AL
 O

FF
IC

ER
B.

 T
ec

h 
in

 E
le

ct
ric

al
 &

 
El

ec
tr

on
ic

s E
ng

in
ee

rin
g,

 N
IT

 
H

am
irp

ur
(H

.P
.)

11
+ 

 Y
ea

rs
2.

09
%

36
00

00
0

-
Pe

rm
an

en
t

01
-J

ul
-2

01
7

34
Ai

rt
el

0
Pe

rm
an

en
t

4
N

AK
U

L 
VA

RS
H

N
EY

PR
O

DU
CT

 M
AN

AG
ER

B.
Te

ch
 C

om
pu

te
r S

ci
en

ce
 

9 
yr

s
1.

39
%

24
00

00
0

-
Pe

rm
an

en
t

06
-J

an
-2

01
6

30
N

A
0

Pe
rm

an
en

t

5
RA

JA
T 

AN
AN

D
O

PE
RA

TI
O

N
S 

M
AN

AG
ER

B.
Te

ch
 +

M
BA

5 
Ye

ar
s

-
18

00
00

0
-

Pe
rm

an
en

t
06

-M
ay

-2
01

9
27

N
A

0
Pe

rm
an

en
t

6
SU

N
IL

 G
U

PT
A

H
EA

D 
FI

N
AN

CE
 &

 A
CC

O
U

N
TS

CA
10

 Y
ea

rs
-

18
00

00
0

-
Pe

rm
an

en
t

06
-A

ug
-2

01
8

34
N

A
Pe

rm
an

en
t

7
SH

AL
IN

I G
IR

DH
AR

PR
O

DU
CT

 M
AN

AG
ER

B.
C.

A 
, M

.C
.A

6.
8 

Ye
ar

s
-

12
00

00
0

-
Pe

rm
an

en
t

24
-A

pr
-2

02
3

31
Ge

ek
sf

or
Ge

ek
s

Pe
rm

an
en

t

8
DE

EP
AN

SH
U

 Y
AD

AV
SO

FT
W

AR
E 

DE
VE

LO
PE

R
gr

ad
ua

tio
n 

in
 B

te
ch

 E
CE

5y
rs

-
11

49
99

6
-

Pe
rm

an
en

t
01

-J
un

-2
01

9
28

N
A

0
Pe

rm
an

en
t

9
BI

SH
AN

 L
AL

SO
FT

W
AR

E 
DE

VE
LO

PE
R

gr
ad

ua
tio

n 
in

 B
te

ch
 E

CE
5y

rs
-

11
00

00
4

-
Pe

rm
an

en
t

01
-J

un
-2

01
9

26
N

A
0

Pe
rm

an
en

t

10
AK

AS
H

 K
U

M
AR

 B
AI

RW
A

IN
VE

N
TO

RY
 M

AN
AG

ER
M

as
te

r's
6 

Ye
ar

-
10

40
00

4
-

Pe
rm

an
en

t
01

-J
un

-2
01

9
28

In
te

rn
 in

 
Di

an
ka

 
In

du
st

rie
s 

& 
Ar

ch
on

 
Po

w
er

in
fra

0
Pe

rm
an

en
t

Th
e 

na
m

es
 o

f t
he

 to
p 

te
n 

em
pl

oy
ee

s i
n 

te
rm

s o
f r

em
un

er
at

io
n 

dr
aw

n
70 | VASA Denticity Limited



Annexure IV

Form no. MR-3
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Auditor's Report on Consolidated
Finanicial Statements
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